
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public 
except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a 

public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 

to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the 
ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable 

accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 1 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Tuesday, February 20, 2024 ◊ 6:00 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Invocation  

4. Pledge of Allegiance (GM) 

5. Special Presentation - Findings from 2023 Audit Report (McNair, McLemore, Middlebrooks & 

Co, LLC) 

 

Ordinance Public Hearing 
6. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances Section 2-54 - 

Compensation (CA) 

Regular Business Meeting 
7. Public Comments 

8. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - February 2, 2024 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - February 2, 2024 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

9. Requests for Waiver of Late Fees and Interest from Mr. and Mrs. Raghu Kakarala and Ms. 

Dolores Walker (Tax Commissioner) 

10. Discussion and possible action regarding the purchase of playground equipment for Jimmy 

Davis Park (staff-CM) 

11. Authorization to allow staff to advertise for Jimmy Davis Park Partnership Advisory Council 

(DB) 

12. Discussion and possible action allowing the City of Eatonton gas department to operate in the 

county right-of-way (staff-CM) 

13. Discussion of road projects approved under TSPLOST #2 (SH) 

Reports/Announcements 
14. County Manager Report  

15. County Attorney Report  

16. Commissioner Announcements 

Closing 
17. Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

6. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances Section 2-54 - 

Compensation (CA)

2



Section 2-54  - Compensation. 

 

(a) Immediately upon the effective date of the repeal of any local act setting the 

compensation for members of the Board of Commissioners, and thereafter, compensation 

for the members of the Board of Commissioners shall be as follows: 

 

1. The chairperson shall receive a salary of $750.00 per month. 

 

2. Each commissioner other than the chairperson shall receive a salary of $650.00 

per month. 

 

In addition, each member shall receive a local mileage allowance of $100.00 per month. 

 

(b) All compensation provided for in this section shall be payable monthly and shall be paid 

from county funds. Except as otherwise provided in subsection (4) and (5) of this section, 

the compensation provided for in this subsection shall constitute the entire compensation 

from all public sources to which the chairperson or commissioners shall be entitled, 

unless otherwise provided for by state law.  The chairperson and commissioners shall not 

be entitled to any further compensation for serving on any boards or authorities by virtue 

of their office, with the specific exception for service on either or both of the boards of 

the Sinclair Water Authority (“SWA”) and Eatonton-Putnam Water and Sewer Authority 

(EPWSA”), or any other authority created by local legislation for which the chairperson 

or commissioner serves and compensation is provided for service of the same. 

 

(c) Expenses for official county business incurred outside of the county are to be reimbursed 

to the commissioners at the same rate as county employees.   

 

(d) Pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 36-1-11.1, as amended, members of the governing authority, as 

well as the dependents and beneficiaries of such officials, shall be entitled to receive, 

upon their election and in the same manner as provided county personnel, group health, 

life, disability, and liability insurance, retirement or pension coverage, social security and 

employment security coverage, deferred compensation benefits currently in place and 

being paid to commissioners, or other similar or related employment benefits, as offered 

by the governing authority.  

 

(e) Members of the Board of Commissioners are entitled to salary adjustments authorized 

under the Georgia Code, to include but not be limited to, O.C.G.A. § 36-5-27 (Training), 

O.C.G.A. § 36-5-28 (COLA), and O.C.G.A. § 36-5-29 (Longevity).   

 

3



File Attachments for Item:

8. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes - February 2, 2024 Regular Meeting (staff-CC)

b. Approval of Minutes - February 2, 2024 Executive Session (staff-CC)

4



Draft Minutes Page 1 of 7  
February 2, 2024   

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 
Friday, February 2, 2024 ◊ 10:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 
 
The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, February 2, 2024, at approximately 
10:00 a.m. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, 
Eatonton, Georgia. 
 
PRESENT  
Chairman Bill Sharp 
Commissioner Gary McElhenney 
Commissioner Daniel Brown 
Commissioner Steve Hersey 
Commissioner Jeff Wooten 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
County Attorney Adam Nelson 
Deputy County Clerk Donna Todd 
 
STAFF ABSENT 
County Manager Paul Van Haute 
County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 
 
Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 
Chairman Sharp called the meeting to order at approximately 10:00 a.m. 
(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
Motion to approve the Agenda. 
Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Hersey. 
Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Hersey, 
Commissioner Wooten 
 
3. Invocation - Brandon Walton, Bible Fellowship Church 
Mr. Brandon Walton, Pastor of Bible Fellowship Church, gave the invocation. 

  
4. Pledge of Allegiance (GM) 
Commissioner McElhenney led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

5



Draft Minutes Page 2 of 7  
February 2, 2024   

 

 
5. Special Presentation - Proclamation for Barry Fleming  
Chairman Sharp read a proclamation honoring Barry Fleming and presented him with a picture 
of a laser-engraved gavel and block set that will be delivered to him. In response, Mr. Fleming 
addressed the board, thanking them for the proclamation and the gift. He also thanked former 
Commissioner Janie Reid and Commissioner Steve Hersey for the original motion and second to 
allow he and Attorney Adam Nelson to serve as County Attorneys for Putnam County. Mr. 
Fleming stated he has consistently used Putnam County as an example of best practices and 
things done right. He stated he was honored to be a part of Putnam County for a few years. 
(Copy of proclamation made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 
 
6. Special Presentation - Chamber of Commerce 2023 Year-End Report - Maggie Milner 
Ms. Maggie Milner, President of the Eatonton-Putnam County Chamber of Commerce, gave a 
presentation highlighting new businesses, visitors, and engagement statistics for Eatonton and 
Putnam County in 2023. She also spoke about the 2024 Leadership Putnam class and proudly 
reported that the class will accomplish four class projects by the time they graduate to include 
gifting 144 turkeys to families in Putnam County for Thanksgiving and providing parents of 
about five families at Christmas the opportunity to buy gifts for their children. 
(Copy of report made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to ___________.)   
 
7. Special Presentation - Recreation Update (staff-SH) 
Mr. Scott Haley, Recreation Director, gave a presentation showcasing the various sports and 
activities Putnam County citizens are enjoying at the Recreation Department. His presentation 
also consisted of a possible site and design of pickleball courts at the Administration Building, 
and update on the progress made at Jimmy Davis Park. Mr. Haley introduced Mr. Tweedy 
Parham, the new Grounds Maintenance Supervisor at Jimmy Davis Park. Immediately following 
Mr. Haley’s presentation, Ms. Carol Neff distributed a document to Commissioners and 
presented information about the pickleball teams and players in the community. She encouraged 
the commissioners to proceed with the construction of the new pickleball court. Ms. Neff also 
answered questions about the pickleball program and invited the Commissioners to give 
pickleball a try. 
(Copy of presentation made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 
__________.) 
 
8. Special Presentation - Councilwoman Reid - Oconee Behavioral Health Board 
Councilwoman Janie Reid presented a brief update on the Oconee Behavioral Health Board. 
She reported that Director Kevin Tanner has taken notice of some discrepancies in operations. 
As a result, Oconee Behavioral Health Board is undergoing an assessment under the direction of 
someone from River Edge Behavioral Health. Councilwoman Reid also reported that the Oconee 
Behavioral Health Board is still providing care to clients.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



Draft Minutes Page 3 of 7  
February 2, 2024   

 

Chairman Sharp invited Sheriff Howard Sills to speak about the FLOCK cameras that were 
approved for purchase at the January 16, 2024 meeting. Sheriff Sills explained that the FLOCK 
cameras are license plate readers. The cameras read the tags on vehicles and check for wanted or 
stolen vehicles. He reported that the Sheriff’s office has solved a lot of crime just by using the 
two cameras on Highway 44. Department of Transportation approval is required to put the 
cameras on state routes but we decide where they are placed. The cost is about $2500 per year 
per camera. Chairman Sharp thanked the sheriff for the information and for the excellent job he 
and his staff do.  
 
Regular Business Meeting 
9. Public Comments 
Mr. Brett Boston spoke about pickleball and its popularity. He reported that the former Belk 
store in the old Macon Mall is now a large pickleball court and is always packed. He emphasized 
that pickleball is a sport that unites people of all ages, abilities, and backgrounds. 
 
Mr. Frank May spoke about dispelling the rumors regarding the proposed pickleball courts. He 
asked for reassurance and accurate information concerning the construction of the courts. He said 
the pickleball players of the community would be happy to assist the Commissioners in any way 
possible to make this proposed pickleball court a reality. He encouraged and invited the 
Commissioners to come to the Recreation Department when the players are playing pickleball to 
personally see just how many of Putnam County’s citizens love the sport.  
 
Ms. Kelley Chitwood reported that there are counties with dedicated pickleball courts, while 
Putnam has none. She urged the Commissioners to move ahead with the pickleball courts 
because they are needed.  
  
10. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - January 5, 2024 (staff-CC) 
b. Approval of Minutes - January 16, 2024 (staff-CC) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 
Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 
Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Hersey, 
Commissioner Wooten 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

7



Draft Minutes Page 4 of 7  
February 2, 2024   

 

11. Authorization for Chairman to sign a letter for a public water supply system (staff-CA) 
Mr. Rick McAllister spoke on the water letter authorization stating that permission to drill a test 
well is sought. For the well to be drilled, a number of requirements have to be met. One 
requirement is to provide written certification that the local government is in concurrence with 
the water system development project and that no evidence of legal dumping or former landfill 
was found on site. 
Mr. Billy Webster spoke about the letter. He questioned the use of the word project without 
identifying what the project is. 
County Attorney Nelson spoke on the item, the requirements, and the need for local government 
approval. Local approval is needed to obtain Department of Natural Resources approval for a 
public water system. There is some discretion as to how the requirement for the regulation is 
met. The regulation involved does require the BOC approval before a public water system can be 
provided. The project is part of a hotel development, there is a concept plan in place, BOC 
approval is required before drilling can begin. 
Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign a letter for a public water supply system. 
Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 
Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Wooten 
Voting Nay: Commissioner Hersey 
(Copy of letter made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 
  
12. Authorization for Chairman to sign a letter to be sent to the City of Eatonton to discuss 

SPLOST #10 projects (staff-CA) 
County Attorney Nelson explained the purpose of the letter to the City of Eatonton is to notify 
the city of the necessity for a meeting to decide and discuss SPLOST#10 projects before 
presented to the public for a vote. A meeting date and time have not been set at this time. County 
Attorney Nelson will confirm with County Manager Van Haute as to when SPLOST#9 ends.  
Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign a letter to be sent to the City of Eatonton to 
discuss SPLOST#10 projects. 
Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Hersey. 
Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Hersey, 
Commissioner Wooten 
(Copy of letter made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.)  

 
13. Update for plan for replacement of House Bill 300 with local legislation (staff-CA) 
Mr. Billy Webster inquired about the proposed updates.  County Attorney Nelson spoke and 
explained that Mr. Webster's comments may be better addressed after the proposed 
changes/updates have been discussed. County Attorney Nelson provided a document wherein 
some proposed changes, from Commissioner Hersey, had been applied and explained that the 
draft ordinance would allow the Board, as a body, to home rule with respect to how officials are 
compensated. The same existing rule will be applied but will be put in local ordinance form. The 
ordinance public hearing will be on the February 20, 2024 meeting agenda for public comment. 
County Attorney Nelson requested that any proposed changes or updates be sent to him. Mr. 
Billy Webster questioned whether the advertised changes needed to be published in the 
newspaper. No action was taken.  
 

 

8



Draft Minutes Page 5 of 7  
February 2, 2024   

 

14. Commissioner Nominations for appointment to MGRC Aging Advisory Council (BS) 
Chairman Sharp asked for nominations for appointment to the MGRC Aging Advisory Council. 
Motion to nominate Commissioner Hersey to the MGRC Aging Advisory Council. 
Motion made by Commissioner Wooten, Seconded by Commissioner Brown 
Commissioner Hersey respectfully declined to serve on the MGRC Aging Advisory Council. 
Chairman Sharp felt the nomination could be delayed if Commissioner Hersey knew of someone 
to nominate. County Attorney Nelson advised that since it was an advisory council, the 
requirements for nomination could be reviewed to see what is required.   
Commissioner Wooten withdrew the motion to nominate Commissioner Hersey to serve on 
the MGRC Advisory Council. Commissioner Brown consented to the withdrawal of the 
motion.  
No action was taken on this item.  
 
Reports/Announcements 
15. County Manager Report 
No report.  County Manager Van Haute was not present at the meeting.  
 
16. County Attorney Report 
County Attorney Nelson requested an Executive Session to discuss one litigation matter after 
Commissioner Announcements.   
 
17. Commissioner Announcements 
Commissioner McElhenney: none 
 
Commissioner Brown: reminded all in attendance that the Town Hall Meeting to discuss Jimmy 
Davis Park and to vote on the playground equipment for the park will be held on February 9, 
2024, at 6:00 p.m.  
 
Commissioner Hersey: wished all in attendance a Happy Groundhog Day and hoped there would 
be an early spring.  
 
Commissioner Wooten: thanked Public Works for their hard work and dedication and thanked 
Human Resources Director Cynthia Miller for reminding us to wear something red for heart 
health week. Ms. Miller does an outstanding job on keeping everyone up to date on ways to stay 
healthy. He also thanked Planning and Development Director Lisa Jackson and her Assistant 
Director Courtney Andrews for their excellent work.  
  
Chairman Sharp: announced that there was a great article about Putnam County in the January 
issue of James Magazine. He encouraged all in attendance to read it. He also asked for continued 
prayers for County Clerk Lynn Butterworth. She is grateful for everyone's prayers. 
  
County Attorney Nelson announced that SPLOST#9 ends October 1, 2025, and that SPLOST#10 
needs to be in place by then. 
 
 

9



Draft Minutes Page 6 of 7  
February 2, 2024   

 

18. Enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Personnel, Litigation, or Real 
Estate 

Motion to enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Litigation. 
Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Hersey. 
Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Hersey, 
Commissioner Wooten 
 
 
Meeting closed at approximately 12:01 p.m.  
 
 
19. Reopen meeting following Executive Session 
Motion to reopen the meeting following Executive Session. 
Motion made by Commissioner Hersey, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten 
Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Hersey, 
Commissioner Wooten 
 
 
Meeting reconvened at approximately 12:27 p.m. 
 
 
20. Authorize Chairman to sign affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed portion of 
the meeting 
Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the Affidavit concerning the subject matter of 
the closed portion of the meeting. 
Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Brown                                                                                                                     
Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Hersey, 
Commissioner Wooten 
(Copy of affidavit made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 
 
21. Action, if any, resulting from the Executive Session 
No action taken.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



Draft Minutes Page 7 of 7  
February 2, 2024   

 

Closing 
18. Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn the meeting.  
Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten 
Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Hersey, 
Commissioner Wooten  
 
 
Meeting adjourned at approximately 12:28 p.m. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Donna Todd         B. W. “Bill” Sharp 
Deputy County Clerk     Chairman 

11



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 

 

 

 

 

The draft minutes of the February 2, 2024 Executive 

Session are available for Commissioner review in the 

Clerk’s office. 
 

12

mailto:lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us
http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


File Attachments for Item:

9. Requests for Waiver of Late Fees and Interest from Mr. and Mrs. Raghu Kakarala and Ms. Dolores 

Walker (Tax Commissioner)

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



File Attachments for Item:

10. Discussion and possible action regarding the purchase of playground equipment for Jimmy Davis 

Park (staff-CM)

33



Date: 2/8/2023

Quote #: JD-01-1

Rep: Todd Wambold
Direct: (678) 350-8971

 QUOTATION

        Bill to: Sourcewell # 40117                       Ship to:

Name Putnam County Recreation Dept. Putnam County Recreation Dept.

Address 140 Recreation Rd. 125 East Hogan Blvd

City, State Zip Eatonton, Ga 31024 Eatonton, Ga 31024

Contact & Phone Scott Haley 706-816-7778

Email Shaley@putnamcountyga.us County: Putnam

Qty Model Number Description Unit Price TOTAL AMOUNT

1 132-178313-1 35,285.00$                       

(2,469.95)                         

44 APS12 1,760.00                          

1 APSRAMP ADA Accessible Border Ramp w/Stakes 700.00                             

1 Freight Border Timber and Ramp Freight 360.00                             

NOTES:   

35,635.05$                       

   SubTotal  35,635.05$                       

Burke Freight 2,699.85$                         
COLORS:

Upright Posts Burke Equipment Installation 12,200.00$                       

Steel Accessories GRAND TOTAL  50,534.90$                       

Plastic Slides

Plastic Panels

2-Color Plastics

Decks & Steps

Roofs

Scott Haley

                Atlanta, GA 30349

4' Plastic Border Timbers w/ Stakes

(770) 719-9005

Open Market       Net 30 From Project Completion:

Your Official PO# may be used for Purchasing.

Your signature, date and color selections must be completed above for order acceptance.                                                     

.  Standard rock clause will apply to installation services.

Thank you for considering PlaySouth Playground Creators!!

Authorized signature & date:

Regular Price:

    PO Box 492467

Synergy Play Structure 

Less Sourcewell Discount 010521-BUR:

This quote is valid for 30 Days. Please allow 12-14 weeks for project 
completion after order is placed.  Your official PO# may be used for 
Purchasing. Terms are NET 30 For SourceWell Purchases.  One 
trash dumpster is included for project waste.  Although every effort 
will be made to minimize disruption, no provision is made herein to 
repair or replaced accidentally damaged landscaping. 

34

mailto:Shaley@putnamcountyga.us


35



36



File Attachments for Item:

11. Authorization to allow staff to advertise for Jimmy Davis Park Partnership Advisory Council (DB)

37



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Jimmy Davis Park Partnership Advisory Council 
(JDPPAC) 

 
 
 

Mission Statement 
 

Promoting Health and Wellness: Jimmy Davis Park is dedicated to offering opportunities 

for physical activity, mental rejuvenation, and a sense of peace in the heart of the city. 

We aim to be a hub for recreational activities, wellness programs, and educational 

initiatives that empower all people to lead healthier lifestyles.  

 

 

 

1. JDPPAC may recommend recreational, wellness, and educational opportunities for 

the community.  

2.  JDPPAC may recommend healthy lifestyle initiatives for the community.  

3. JDPPAC shall meet a minimum of four times a year.  

4. JDPPAC shall report to the Board of Commissioners quarterly.  

5. JDPPAC shall sunset after 12 months unless extended by the Chairman.  

6. JDPPAC shall consist of five members and the District Commissioner. 

7.  The Recreation Director or designee may attend.  

 

 

 

38



File Attachments for Item:

12. Discussion and possible action allowing the City of Eatonton gas department to operate in the 

county right-of-way (staff-CM)

39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



File Attachments for Item:

13. Discussion of road projects approved under TSPLOST #2 (SH)

48



TSPLOST #2 Estimated  TSPLOST #2 Estimated 

Collections Collections

Est. Collections Gross $18,375,000 Est. Collections Net $16,875,000

ROW Maintenance ($500,000) District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 Previously Completed #NAME? District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4

Intersection imp. ($1,000,000) 25% 25% 25% 25% Revised Estimate . 25% 25% 25% 25%

Est. Collections Net $16,875,000  4,218,750.00$   4,218,750.00$     4,218,750.00$       4,218,750.00$       Orig. $ 4,517,500.00$   4,600,000.00$   4,690,000.00$       4,570,000.00$    

Total Est 4,517,500.00$   4,600,000.00$     4,690,000.00$       4,570,000.00$      Revised$ -$                     3,600,000.00$   -$                         #REF!

Balance ($298,750.00) ($381,250.00) ($471,250.00) ($351,250.00) SAVINGS $4,517,500.00 $1,000,000.00 $4,690,000.00 #REF!

DISTRICT 1  DISTRICT 1  

Road Name Beginning Ending Miles Cost Estimate Road Name Beginning Ending Miles Cost Estimate

Parks Mill Rd Harmony Rd County Line 3 100,000.00$       300,000.00$         District 3 50% Parks Mill Rd Harmony Rd County Line 3 100,000.00$       300,000.00$       District 3 50%

Shadow Lake Dr Parks Mill County Line 0.3 200,000.00$       60,000.00$            Shadow Lake Dr Parks Mill County Line 0.3 200,000.00$       60,000.00$          

Glenwood Springs RD Bridge/Horton Glenwood Springs DR 4.2 200,000.00$       840,000.00$          Glenwood Springs RD Bridge/Horton Glenwood Springs DR 4.2 200,000.00$       840,000.00$        

Beaver Dam Rd Hwy 16 End of Pavement/Keys 2 200,000.00$       400,000.00$         Beaver Dam Rd Hwy 16 End of Pavement/Keys 2 200,000.00$       400,000.00$       

Linchburg Rd Hwy 16 Hwy 16 2.3 200,000.00$       460,000.00$         Linchburg Rd Hwy 16 Hwy 16 2.3 200,000.00$       460,000.00$       

McMillen Rd Browns Chapel Hillsboro 2.5 15,000.00$         37,500.00$           Striping only McMillen Rd Browns Chapel Hillsboro 2.5 15,000.00$         37,500.00$         Striping only  

Marshall Rd Little Rd County Line 2.1 200,000.00$       420,000.00$         Marshall Rd Little Rd County Line 2.1 200,000.00$       420,000.00$       

Mt Gilead Church Hwy 300 End of pavement 0.5 200,000.00$       100,000.00$         Mt Gilead Church Hwy 300 End of pavement 0.5 200,000.00$       100,000.00$       

Old Macon Circle Hwy 129 Hwy 129 1.5 200,000.00$       300,000.00$         Old Macon Circle Hwy 129 Hwy 129 1.5 200,000.00$       300,000.00$       

Godfrey Rd City Limits Glades Rd  W 4 200,000.00$       800,000.00$         Godfrey Rd City Limits Glades Rd  W 4 200,000.00$       800,000.00$       

Ridgeview Shadow Lake Parks Mill 0.2 200,000.00$       40,000.00$           Ridgeview Shadow Lake Parks Mill 0.2 200,000.00$       40,000.00$         

Central Rd SW Hillsboro Browns Chapel 1 200,000.00$       200,000.00$          Central Rd SW Hillsboro Browns Chapel 1 200,000.00$       200,000.00$        

Martin Mill Rd NW Hwy 142 End of pavement 0.4 200,000.00$       80,000.00$           Martin Mill Rd NW Hwy 142 End of pavement 0.4 200,000.00$       80,000.00$         

Franklin Rd Hwy 441 County Line 0.5 200,000.00$       100,000.00$         Franklin Rd Hwy 441 County Line 0.5 200,000.00$       100,000.00$       

Booger Bear Lane Little Rd County Line 0.4 200,000.00$       80,000.00$           LMIG 2023 Complete Booger Bear Lane Little Rd County Line 0.4 200,000.00$       80,000.00$         LMIG 2023 Complete

Horton Glenwood Sprgs Dead End 1 200,000.00$       200,000.00$         Horton Glenwood Sprgs Dead End 1 200,000.00$       200,000.00$       

Striping 1 100,000.00$       100,000.00$         Striping 1 100,000.00$       100,000.00$       

TOTALS 24 4,517,500.00$     TOTALS 24 4,517,500.00$   

Complete

District 2

Oconee Springs Rd City Limits Pea Ridge 3 200,000.00$       600,000.00$         District 2

Oconee Springs Rd Pea Ridge Texas Chapel 2 200,000.00$       400,000.00$          Oconee Springs Rd City Limits Pea Ridge 3 200,000.00$       600,000.00$       

Texas Chapel Oconee Springs Hwy 16 1.1 200,000.00$       220,000.00$         Oconee Springs Rd Pea Ridge Texas Chapel 2 200,000.00$       400,000.00$       

Pea Ridge Scuffleboro Rd Hwy 16 5 200,000.00$       1,000,000.00$     Texas Chapel Oconee Springs Hwy 16 1.1 200,000.00$       220,000.00$       

Bethel Church Lower Harmony Fork in road 1.2 200,000.00$       240,000.00$         Pea Ridge Scuffleboro Rd Hwy 16 5 200,000.00$       1,000,000.00$   LMIG 2022 Complete

MLK Pea Ridge New paving 2 200,000.00$       400,000.00$         Bethel Church Lower Harmony Fork in road 1.2 200,000.00$       240,000.00$       

Crooked Creek Rd Oconee Springs Wilson Rd 1 200,000.00$       200,000.00$         MLK Pea Ridge New paving 2 200,000.00$       400,000.00$       

Crooked Creek Rd Pea Ridge End of pavement 2.2 200,000.00$       440,000.00$         Crooked Creek Rd Oconee Springs Wilson Rd 1 200,000.00$       200,000.00$       

New Phoenix Rd Wards Chapel Old Phoenix Rd 1 200,000.00$       200,000.00$         Crooked Creek Rd Pea Ridge End of pavement 2.2 200,000.00$       440,000.00$       

Wesley Chapel Rd Hwy 44 Crooked Creek Rd 4 200,000.00$       800,000.00$         New Phoenix Rd Wards Chapel Old Phoenix Rd 1 200,000.00$       200,000.00$       LMIG 2024

Striping 1 100,000.00$       100,000.00$         Wesley Chapel Rd Hwy 44 Crooked Creek Rd 4 200,000.00$       800,000.00$       

TOTALS 22.5 4,600,000.00$     Striping 1 100,000.00$       100,000.00$       

TOTALS 22.5 4,600,000.00$   

Pea Ridge Scuffleboro Rd Hwy 16 5 200,000.00$       (1,000,000.00)$  LMIG 2022 Complete

3,600,000.00$   

District 3 District 3

Old Phoenix Hwy 44 New Phoenix 3.9 200,000.00$       780,000.00$         LMIG 2023 1 Mile  2.9 miles remain Old Phoenix Hwy 44 New Phoenix 3.9 200,000.00$       780,000.00$       LMIG 2023 1 Mile  2.9 miles remain

Harmony Rd Lakemore Parks Mill 3.1 200,000.00$       620,000.00$         Harmony Rd Lakemore(MAN) Parks Mill 3.1 200,000.00$       620,000.00$       

Parks Mill Harmony Rd County Line 3 100,000.00$       300,000.00$         District 1 50% Dist #1 Parks Mill Harmony Rd County Line 3 100,000.00$       300,000.00$       District 1 50%

Wards Chapel Old Phoenix New Phoenix 3.6 200,000.00$       720,000.00$         Wards Chapel Old Phoenix New Phoenix 3.6 200,000.00$       720,000.00$       

Angelina Court 0.5 100,000.00$       50,000.00$           District 4 50% Angelina Court(CIRCLE) Gregory Lane to the end 0.5 100,000.00$       50,000.00$         District 4 50%

Texas Chapel   1 200,000.00$       200,000.00$         Texas Chapel Hwy 16 Hwy 16 1 200,000.00$       200,000.00$       District 2 & 4

Oconee Springs Rd Pnkerton Hwy 16 2.1 200,000.00$       420,000.00$         Oconee Springs Rd Pnkerton Hwy 16 2.1 200,000.00$       420,000.00$        

Jefferson Rd Harmony Rd Sugar Creek Trail 1 200,000.00$       200,000.00$         Jefferson Rd Harmony Rd Sugar Creek Trail 1 200,000.00$       200,000.00$       

Dist #1 Hoot Owl Lane Hwy 44 to the end 0.7 200,000.00$       140,000.00$         LMIG 2024 Dist #1 Hoot Owl Lane Hwy 44 to the end 0.7 200,000.00$       140,000.00$       LMIG 2024

Dist #1 Beaver Rd Alexander Rd Hoot Owl Lane 0.5 200,000.00$       100,000.00$         LMIG 2024 Dist #1 Beaver Rd Alexander Rd Hoot Owl Lane 0.5 200,000.00$       100,000.00$       LMIG 2024

Martin Oaks Blvd Shelby to the end 0.5 200,000.00$       100,000.00$         Martin Oaks Blvd Shelby to the end 0.5 200,000.00$       100,000.00$       

Lakeview Estates Lakeview Drive to the end 0.4 200,000.00$       80,000.00$           Lakeview Estates Lakeview Drive to the end 0.4 200,000.00$       80,000.00$         

Long Shoals Rd Crowe Rd Recycle Center 1.2 200,000.00$       240,000.00$         Long Shoals Rd Crowe Rd Recycle Center 1.2 200,000.00$       240,000.00$       

W.Riverbend Dr NE W Riverbend to the end 1 200,000.00$       200,000.00$          W.Riverbend Dr NE W Riverbend to the end 1 200,000.00$       200,000.00$       

E. Riverbend Way to the end 0.3 200,000.00$       60,000.00$           E. Riverbend Way to the end 0.3 200,000.00$       60,000.00$         

Quessenberry Rd Spring Rd to the end 1.9 200,000.00$       380,000.00$         Quessenberry Rd Spring Rd to the end 1.9 200,000.00$       380,000.00$       

Striping 1 100,000.00$       100,000.00$         Striping 1 100,000.00$       100,000.00$       

 TOTALS 24.7 4,690,000.00$     TOTALS 24.7 4,690,000.00$   

 2.9 miles remain

District 4 District 4

Lower Little River Dr 0.2 200,000.00$       40,000.00$           Lower Little River Dr all 0.2 200,000.00$       40,000.00$         

Little River Dr SW 0.3 200,000.00$       60,000.00$           Little River Dr SW all 0.3 200,000.00$       60,000.00$         

Burtom Rd 1.6 200,000.00$       320,000.00$         Burtom Rd all 1.6 200,000.00$       320,000.00$       

Daylight Dr W 0.4 200,000.00$       80,000.00$           Daylight Dr W all 0.4 200,000.00$       80,000.00$         

Lake Court W 200,000.00$       -$                       Lake Court W all 200,000.00$       -$                      

49



Dennis Station Milledgeville Rd Lake Sinclair 8.9 200,000.00$       1,780,000.00$     LMIG 2023 1 Mile  7.9 miles remain Dennis Station Milledgeville Rd Lake Sinclair 8.9 200,000.00$       1,780,000.00$   LMIG 2023 1 Mile  7.9 miles remain

Flat Rock all 0.2 200,000.00$       40,000.00$           Flat Rock all 0.2 200,000.00$       40,000.00$         

Flat Rock Ct cul-de-sac 0.1 200,000.00$       20,000.00$           Flat Rock Ct cul-de-sac 0.1 200,000.00$       20,000.00$         

Flat Rock Lane all 0.1 200,000.00$       20,000.00$           Flat Rock Lane all 0.1 200,000.00$       20,000.00$         

Flat Rock Rd all 0.8 200,000.00$       160,000.00$         Flat Rock Rd all 0.8 200,000.00$       160,000.00$       

Humber Ferry 0.4 200,000.00$       80,000.00$           Humber Ferry all 0.4 200,000.00$       80,000.00$         

Gregory all 1.1 200,000.00$       220,000.00$         Dist #3 Gregory all 1.1 200,000.00$       220,000.00$       

Angelina Court (CIRCLE) 0.5 100,000.00$       50,000.00$           District 3 50% Angelina Court (CIRCLE) all 0.5 100,000.00$       50,000.00$         District 3 50%

MLK Parks 2.7 200,000.00$       540,000.00$         Dist #2/#4 Dist #2/#4 MLK Pea Ridge Parks 2.7 200,000.00$       540,000.00$       

Parks Rd 2.3 200,000.00$       460,000.00$         Parks Rd MLK Old Milledgeville Hwy 2.3 200,000.00$       460,000.00$       

Pea Ridge Rd Hwy 441 Scuffleboro/MLK 3 200,000.00$       600,000.00$         LMIG 2022 Complete Pea Ridge Rd Hwy 441 Scuffleboro/MLK 3 200,000.00$       600,000.00$       LMIG 2022 Complete

Striping 1 100,000.00$       100,000.00$         Striping 1 100,000.00$       100,000.00$       

TOTALS 23.6 4,570,000.00$   

TOTALS 23.6 4,570,000.00$     

LMIG 2024
District 1 FROM TO Miles Total

Beaver Rd Alexander Rd Hoot Owl Lane 0.5 250,000.00$       125,000.00$         Dennis Station Milledgeville Rd Lake Sinclair 1 200,000.00$       (200,000.00)$      LMIG 2023 1 Mile  7.9 miles remain

Hoot Owl Lane Beaver Rd End of Pavement 0.7 250,000.00$       175,000.00$          Pea Ridge Rd Hwy 441 Scuffleboro/MLK 3 200,000.00$       (600,000.00)$      LMIG 2022 Complete

Old Phoenix Hwy 44 New Phoenix 1 200,000.00$       (200,000.00)$      LMIG 2023 1 Mile

District 2 Booger Bear Lane Little Rd County Line 0.4 200,000.00$       (80,000.00)$        LMIG 2023

Little Circle New Phoenix Old Phoenix 1.2 250,000.00$       300,000.00$         

District 3  

New Phoenix Rd Wards Chapel Old Phoenix Rd 1 250,000.00$       250,000.00$         

District 4

Long Shoals Ave Long Shoals Rd End of Pavement 1 250,000.00$       250,000.00$         

1,100,000.00$     

50



FUNDING THE PROJECTS 

Original Estimate ($200K/mi)    $18.4M 

New Estimate ($250K/mi)     $23.5M 

ORIGINAL PROPOSAL 

Issue $22M of GO bonds (4yr)  $22M* 

Additional LMIG    $1.5M 

 

TOTAL     $23.5M 

*Principal & Interest paid from ?? 

ALTERNATIVE PROPOSAL 

Divide projects into two bids 

 

I. Spring 2024 Solicitation 

 

Collections on hand    $8M 

Additional LMIG    $1.5M 

SPLOST #9 (per CM)    $2.0M 

 

TOTAL     $11.5M 

 

II. Summer 2025  Solicitation 

 

Issue GO bonds (3yr)    $8M* 

Collections (1yr)    $4M 

 

TOTAL     $12M 

 

*Principal & Interest paid from collections (2.25yrs) 

51


	Top
	Item #6.	2024-02-20 BOC Ordinance PH
	Sec. 2-54. Compensation

	Item #8.	2024-02-20 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 2024-02-02 BOC Minutes-DT-LB
	Exec Session note

	Item #9.	2024-02-20 BOC Tax Comm
	Kakarala-redacted
	Walker - Redacted

	Item #10.	2024-02-20 BOC JD Park Playground
	Jimmy Davis Park Playground- JD-01-1 Quote
	3D Image Playground - 132-178313-1A_TW_JimmyDavisPark (002)

	Item #11.	2024-02-20 BOC JD Park Advisory
	JDParkPartnershipAdvisoryBoard Mission Statement

	Item #12.	2024-02-20 BOC City of Eatonton
	City of Eatonton

	Item #13.	2024-02-20 BOC TSPLOST#2
	Copy of TSPLOST #2 Commissioner project list May 2021
	FUNDING THE PROJECTS

	Bottom



